1 2	Nottingham Planning Board – November 28, 2012	
3 4	NOTTINGHAM PLANNING BOARD	
5	November 28, 2012	
6	Minutes Public Sessions	
7		
8	Meeting Location:	Nottingham Municipal
9	Members Present:	Arthur Stockus, Chair; Troy Osgood, Vice Chair; Susan Mooney,
10		Secretary; Eduard Viel; John Morin, Dirk Grotenhuis; Hal Rafter,
11	Oth one Drogomto	BOS Representative; and Robert Davies.
12 13	Others Present:	Paul Colby, Building Inspector/Code Administrator; Jo-Ann
13		MacInnis, Land Use Clerk.
15	Chair Stockus called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. Introductions were made. Mr.	
16	Davies will be participating but not voting this evening.	
17	Duvies will be participating out not voting time evening.	
18	Public Hearing – Case P12-08-SUB	
19		
20	Chair Stockus read the first case:	
21		
22	Case P#12-08-SUB – Application from Douglas N. Leib, Trustee, for acceptance,	
23	compliance review, and final approval of a subdivision. The properties in question are	
24	located on Cahill Lane and identified as Tax Map 68 Lot 49. Owners of Record:	
25	Douglas N. Leib, Tru	stee.
26		
27	Mr. Colby advised the Board he had reviewed the application for a subdivision of Tax	
28	Map 68 Lot 49 and found said plans and documents to be complete and recommended	
29	acceptance of the app	lication.
30	3 6 1 1	
31	Motion was made by Susan Mooney to accept the application as complete for Case	
32 33	P#12-08-SUB – Application from Douglas N. Leib, Trustee, for acceptance, compliance	
33 34	review, and final approval of a subdivision. The properties in question are located on Cahill Lane and identified as Tax Map 68 and Lot 49.	
35	Second: John Morin	
36	Second. John Morni	
37	Vote: 7 – 0 Motion Passed	
38	7 0000 7 0 171001011	Lubbou
39	Chair Stockus opened the Public Hearing for Case #P12-08-SUB and explained to those	
40	present the procedures to be followed: the applicant presents the proposal; the Board	
41	members ask questions of the applicant; other questions and comments are taken in the	
42	following order: abutters in favor, abutters opposed, anyone else who wishes to speak if	
43	_	written comments are read into the record.
44		
45	Mr. Peter Landry, Landry Surveying, LLC, representing Douglas Leib, began the	
46	presentation to the Board describing a brief history regarding the property. He apprised	

Nottingham Planning Board November 28, 2012Page two

the Planning Board that the Zoning Board of Adjustment granted relief from the frontage requirement as well as the 30,000 square foot lot envelope requirements. Cahill Lane is a private road and all other lots have homes on them.

Mr. Osgood questioned who owns the lots shown on the plans and Mr. Leib replied that he did. Mr. Leib advised the Board that he will retain ownership of the road and his intent is to clarify driveway cuts to cover the people who are using the road now.

Mr. Osgood asked how many existing driveways there are and Mr. Leib stated there are four (4) driveways to (5) homes.

Mr. Grothenhuis questioned if the proposed lots had deeded easements and Mr. Leib replied that all do except for Lot 48 which will have if this plan is approved.

Ms Mooney asked where the access point is for people living on existing lots to have access to the lake and Mr. Landry advised that whether or not those lots have access rights to the lake does not encumber Mr. Leib's property.

68 Chair Stockus requested Mr. Colby to present his review to the Board at this time.

Mr. Colby presented his written review to the Board dated November 28, 2012 regarding Mr. Leib's property. (see attached) Mr. Colby advised the Board that it must make a decision regarding whether or not Mr. Leib has met all the conditions set by the Zoning Board plus all Town requirements.

Fire Chief Vilchock's memo dated November 11, 2012 to the Planning Board regarding this case was reviewed and it was determined that under RSA 674:36 IV the Board can not require the applicant to provide sprinkler systems that meet the requirements of NFRD 13-D.

Mr. Landry advised the Board that this land will be separate ownership and curb cuts for each one of the three (3) lots will be shown on the plans to provide the potential to build driveways. He stated that deeded easements will most likely be on Cahill Lane only.

Mr. Osgood stated that deeded easements must be written into the plan showing that existing houses receive same deeded rights.

The Board reviewed the Zoning Board of Adjustment's May 18, 2011 minutes to determine that Lots 49 and 49-1 are exempt from the 30,000 square foot requirement.

- The Board determined the applicant has met the conditions as set forth at the May 18,
- 91 2011 Zoning Board of Adjustment's minutes and documented in it's Notice of Decision
- 92 with regards to Case 11-01-V-R. Although the May 18, 2012 one (1) year deadline has

93 94 Town of Nottingham Planning Board November 28, 2012 Meeting 95 Page Three 96 97 Case #P12-08-SUB – Leib Continued 98 99 passed, due to a court case heard by Judge McHugh on December 7, 2011 it was decided 100 to utilize the State of New Hampshire Judicial Branch Notice of Decision regarding Case 101 218-2011-CV-00677 dated December 15, 2011 and the new date that all ZBA conditions 102 must be met is now December 7, 2012. 103 104 Mr. Landry stated that as soon as Mr. Leib receives approval from the Planning Board he 105 will begin work on the road. 106 107 Mr. Osgood pointed out errors on the plan which shows total area amounts on Lot 49 and 108 Lot 49-1 in acreage instead of square feet. Mr. Landry stated this will be rectified. 109 110 Chair Stockus closed the Public Hearing. 111 112 **Motion** was made by John Morin, that the application has met the conditions as set forth 113 by the ZBA Notice of Decision for approval regarding the one (1) year start date to begin 114 the Planning Board process and to begin the building of the road. The deadline to begin being December 7, 2012 due to the State of New Hampshire Judicial Branch Notice of 115 116 Decision dated December 15, 2011. 117 **Second:** Dirk Grotenhuis 118 119 **Vote:** 7 -0 **Motion Passes** 120 121 The next discussion was whether or not the Zoning Board of Adjustment had granted 122 variances for Lot 49 and Lot 49-1 regarding the 30,000 square foot lot envelope 123 requirement. 124 125 The Board reviewed the Zoning Board of Adjustment March 1, 2011 minutes. Mr. 126 Grotenhuis read Lines 146 through 148 which states, "Discussions were on when the 127 parent lot is divided to the new lots does it then now have to meet the ZO or is it exempt. 128 The Board eventually agreed with the applicant, that it was exempt". 129 130 Mr. Viel stated that he believes the applicant has done his due diligence in this case with 131 the Zoning Board of Adjustment and that said Board did indicate their intent that no 132 variance was required for the two (2) Lots 49 and 49-1 which is why the applicant has not 133 applied for variances. 134 135 **Motion** was made by Mr. Viel to accept the Zoning Board of Adjustment decision made at their March 1, 2011 meeting that Lot 49 and Lot 49-1 are exempt from the 30.000 136 square foot lot envelope requirement and the applicant did receive a variance from the 137 138 Zoning Board of Adjustment for Lot 49-2 as a non conforming lot.

139 Town of Nottingham Planning Board November 28, 2012 Meeting 140 Page four 141 142 Case #P12-08-SUB – Leib – Continued 143 144 **Second:** Susan Mooney 145 146 Mr. Rafter, the Board of Selectmen representative, apprised the Planning Board the 147 Board of Selectmen were the party that challenged the original Zoning Board of 148 Adjustment decision and it is his opinion that to allow non conforming lots approval 149 without formal variances being granted by the Zoning Board of Adjustment seems a bad 150 precedent to set. 151 152 Mr. Davies advised the zoning ordinances state when you create a new lot you must have 153 a 30,000 square foot envelope and if you do not have that a variance is required. 154 155 Mr. Morin stated the building already exists so the new lot is conforming around the 156 building. 157 158 Mr. Davies insisted the plan was creating new lots that do not meet the statue. 159 160 Chair Stockus questioned if there were any further questions and seeing none the vote 161 was called. 162 **Vote:** 4-3 **Motion** Passes 163 164 4 in favor – Troy Osgood; Susan Mooney, John Morin; Eduard Viel 165 3 opposed – Arthur Stockus; Dirk Grotenhuis; Hal Rafter 166 167 Chair Stockus stated that at this time a motion to approve or disapprove the subdivision 168 was in order and asked Mr. Colby what needed to be changed on the plans should the 169 Board vote to approve. 170 171 Mr. Colby replied the following conditions must be met: State of New Hampshire 172 subdivision approval, new boundary markers set, note added to the plan stating Lot 49-2 173 is subject to impact fees, and deeded right of ways for Lot 49 and Lot 49-1. He also 174 advised the Board the proposed Lot 49-2 shows the setback to the edge of the water to be 175 fifty (50) feet. There is a conflict between the town's Zoning Ordinance, which states 176 that no building within fifty (50) feet of waters edge, and, Article V B 1 (e) of the 177 Subdivision Regulations which states the distance shall be no less than seventy-five (75) 178 feet. 179 180 It was the consensus of the Board to accept the Zoning Board of Adjustment fifty (50) 181 foot requirement, and, therefore, no waiver is required. 182 183

185 186 Town of Nottingham Planning Board November 28, 2012 Meeting 187 Page Five 188 189 Case #P12-08-SUB – Leib Continued 190 191 Mr. Colby stated the 40,000 square foot area for septic usage is not shown to meet the 192 setback requirements as per the town's Subdivision Regulation Article V A6 (5) (ii) for 193 all three (3) proposed lots. 194 195 Mr. Landry explained that it was the opinion of the applicant the plan met state setback 196 requirements and as he was granted a variance For Lot 49-2 as well as the Zoning Board 197 of Adjustment exempting Lots 49 and 49-1 from the 30,000 square foot requirements he 198 felt he could put the 4K requirement within ten (10) feet of the lot line on all three (3) 199 lots. 200 201 Mr. Morin questioned if the applicant's plan was to leave this up to the state and Mr. 202 Landry replied that it was. 203 204 Chair Stockus asked for a motion. 205 206 **Motion** was made by Vice Chair Osgood to accept the 40,000 square foot area for septic 207 use that does not meet the setback requirements per Subdivision Regulations Article V 208 A6 (5) (ii) for all three (3) proposed lots. 209 **Second:** John Morin 210 211 Mr. Viel stated that he felt this should be conditional pending state subdivision approval 212 and Chair Stockus questioned if he would like to make an amendment to the motion at 213 this time. 214 215 **Motion** was made by Edvuard Viel to amend Mr. Osgood's above motion to add: 216 pending the State of New Hampshire subdivision approval and septic approval. 217 **Second:** Susan Mooney 218 **Vote:** 7 - 0 **Amendment Passes** 219 220 The **Motion** shall now read: to accept the 40,000 square foot area for septic use that does 221 not meet the setback requirements per Subdivision Regulations Article V A6 (5) (ii) for 222 all three (3) proposed lots pending the State of New Hampshire subdivision approval and 223 septic approval. 224 225 **Vote:** 6 – 1 Dirk Grotenhuis opposed – **Motion Passes** 226 227 **Motion** was made by Troy Osgood to approve **Case #P12-08-SUB** - Application from 228 Douglas N. Leib, Trustee, for acceptance, compliance review, and final approval of a 229 subdivision. The properties in question are located on Cahill Lane and identified as Tax 230 Map 68 Lot 49 with the following conditions:

231 Town of Nottingham Planning Board November 28, 2013 Meeting 232 Page six 233 234 Case #P12-08-SUB – Leib Continued 235 236 237 1. State of New Hampshire Subdivision Approval – Condition Sunset: November 238 28, 2013 239 2. New Lot Boundary Markers Set – Condition Sunset: November 28, 2013 240 3. Note Added to Plan Stating Lot 49-2 is Subject to Impact Fees – Condition 241 Sunset: November 28, 2013 242 4. Deed Rights of Ways for Lots 49 and 49-1 – Condition Sunset: November 28, 243 2013 244 245 **Vote:** 4-2-1 **Motion Passes** 246 4 in favor - Arthur Stockus; Troy Osgood; John Morin; Edvuard Viel 247 2 opposed – Dirk Grotenhuis; Hal Rafter 248 1 abstention – Susan Mooney 249 250 Public Hearing – Case #P12-09-LLA Merry Hill 251 252 Chair Stockus read the second case: 253 254 Case #P12-09-LLA-An application from Beals Associates, PLLC for a lot line 255 adjustment, acceptance, compliance review, and final approval. The property in question 256 is located on Route 4, and Merry Hill Road and identified as Tax Map 4 Lot 5, 4-3 257 owner(s) of Record: Pogo Realty Trust and Merry Merry Hill LLC. 258 259 Mr. Colby advised the Board that following his review of the application it was found to 260 be complete and he recommended the application be accepted. 261 262 Motion was made by Troy Osgood to accept the application as complete for Case #P12-263 **09-LLA-**An application from Beals Associates, PLLC for a lot line adjustment, acceptance, compliance review, and final approval. The property in question is located 264 265 on Route 4, and Merry Hill Road and identified as Tax Map 4 Lot 5, 4-3 owner(s) of 266 Record: Pogo Realty Trust and Merry Merry Hill LLC. 267 **Second:** Susan Mooney 268 269 **Vote:** 7 - 0 **Motion Passed** 270 271 Chair Stockus opened the Public Hearing at this time again explaining to those present 272 the procedures to be followed: the applicant presents the proposal; the Board members ask questions of the applicant; other questions and comments are taken in the following 273 274 order: abutters in favor, abutters opposed, anyone else who wishes to speak if time

permits, and any written comments are read into the record.

275

277 278 Town of Nottingham Planning Board November 28, 2012 Meeting 279 Page Seven 280 281 Case #P12-09-LLA Continued 282 283 Christian Smith, Beals Associates, PLLC and Joseph Falzone, Merry Merry Hill were 284 present representing the applicant: Pogo Realty Trust. 285 286 Mr. Davies questioned on which road proposed Lot 4-3 will have frontage and Mr. Smith 287 advised it will have frontage on Merry Hill and the new road. 288 289 Mr. Colby recommended the plan be conditionally approved pending boundary markers 290 being installed for new lot lines upon completion of work to be performed and an 291 affidavit of placement filed with the Planning office. 292 293 Chair Stockus asked if there were any further questions and seeing none closed the Public 294 Hearing. 295 296 **Motion** was made by Susan Mooney to approve **Case #P12-09-LLA-**An application 297 from Beals Associates, PLLC for a lot line adjustment, acceptance, compliance review, 298 and final approval. The property in question is located on Route 4, and Merry Hill Road 299 and identified as Tax Map 4 Lot 5, 4-3 owner(s) of Record: Pogo Realty Trust and Merry 300 Merry Hill LLC contingent upon the boundary markers being installed for new lot lines 301 and affidavit of placement with the Planning office upon completion. 302 **Second:** Troy Osgood 303 304 **Vote:** 7 - 0 **Motion Passed** 305 306 Public Hearing – Case #P12-03-SUB Continuance Merry Hill/Route 4 307 308 Chair Stockus read the third case this evening: 309 310 Case #P12-03-SUB – Continuance of an application from Beals Associates, PLLC for 311 acceptance, compliance review, and final approval of a subdivision. The property in 312 question is located on Merry Hill Road and Route 4 and identified as Tax Map 4 and Lot 313 5. Owner(s) of Record: Pogo Realty Trust and Merry Merry Hill, LLC. 314 315 Chair Stockus reminded those present regarding procedures to be followed. 316 317 Mr. Colby apprised the Planning Board that this application has already been accepted by 318 the Board and this meeting is a continuance from the May 23, 2012 meeting although the 319 original owners have changed and are no longer James Linda and Frederick Fernald but 320 are now Pogo Realty Trust and Merry Merry Hill, LLC. Mr. Colby reviewed with the 321 Board his memo dated November 28, 2012 regarding said subdivision. (see attached) 322

323 324 Town of Nottingham Planning Board November 28, 2012 Meeting 325 Page Eight 326 327 Case #P12-03-SUB Continued 328 329 Christian Smith, Beals Associates, PLLC and Joseph Falzone, Merry Merry Hill were 330 present representing the applicant: Doucet Survey. A request has been submitted for a 331 waiver to allow a twenty (20) foot pavement width for the proposed road where twenty-332 four (24) feet is required. 333 334 Mr. Smith also apprised the Board there are 15 lots on the property with no wetland 335 impact, open space access will be met for residents and the applicant is proposing to use 336 contiguous curbing and shoulders. 337 338 Chair Stockus asked if there will be sidewalks and Mr. Smith replied there will not be. 339 340 Ms. Mooney questioned if there are any vernal pools on the property and Mr. Smith 341 replied that there were not; all wetlands on the property were site specific and poorly 342 drained soils. There is a wetland delineation report as well as a site specific soil mapping 343 report. No egg masses were found. 344 345 Mr. Colby continued to review his memo dated November 28, 2012 reminding the Board 346 that this is his first time reviewing an open space design as he was not in attendance at the 347 Board's May 23, 2012 meeting and, as such, requested the Board correct him if need be. 348 349 Mr. Smith apprised the Board the applicant is waiting for the Board to approve the submittal of the Stormwater Management and Sediment and Erosion Control Plan to 350 351 RCDD. The Board advised the applicant to do same. 352 353 Mr. Smith submitted a written waiver request to allow a twenty (20) foot pavement width 354 for the proposed road where 24 feet is required. A written waiver request was also 355 submitted from Section V B 2 (1) for the use of a cul-de-sac as the Planning Board 356 instructed the applicant to submit at it's May 23, 2012 meeting. 357 358 **Motion** was made by Susan Mooney to allow the applicant to submit the Stormwater Management and Sediment and Erosion Control Plan prepared by Beals Associates, 359 360 PLLC to RCCD for engineering review of the plan for Case #P12-03-SUB. 361 **Second:** Edvuard Viel 362 363 **Vote:** 7 - 0 **Motion Passes** 364 365 Mr. Osgood questioned if the road width had been reviewed by the Road Agent and the 366 Fire Chief and Mr. Colby replied they had. The Chief did not mention a problem in his review dated November 27, 2012, and the Road Agent has advised Mr. Colby he had no 367 problem with the twenty (20) foot width. 368

369 370 Planning Board November 28, 2012 Meeting Minutes 371 Page Nine 372 373 Case: #P12-03-SUB Continued 374 375 **Motion** was made by Susan Mooney to accept the waiver request to the Subdivision 376 Rules and Regulations Section V B 2 (1) to allow for use of a cul-de-sac in this open 377 space subdivision Case P12-03-SUB. 378 **Second:** Edvuard Viel 379 380 **Vote:** 6 - 0 - 1 John Morin abstained **Motion Passes** 381 382 **Motion** was made by Troy Osgood to accept the waiver request to the Subdivision Rules 383 and Regulations to allow a twenty (20) foot pavement width for the proposed road for 384 Case: #P12-03-SUB. 385 **Second:** Susan Mooney 386 387 **Vote:** 6 − 1 Dirk Grotenhuis opposed **Motion Passes** 388 389 Mr. Viel advised Mr. Smith there appears to be an acre difference on the plan regarding 390 what is actually being submitted as open space. Mr. Smith will look into this and have it 391 clarified for the next meeting. 392 393 Mr. Colby recommended to postpone any decision until the applicant has made all 394 changes to the proposed plans. 395 Motion was made by Troy Osgood to continue Case: #P12-03-SUB until Wednesday, 396 397 January 23, 2013 at 7:15 p.m. 398 **Second:** Susan Mooney 399 400 **Vote:** 7 - 0 **Motion Passes** 401 402 Minutes – November 14, 2012 403 404 Line 11 – Under Members Absent – Dirk Grotenhuis to be added 405 Line 31 – Capitalize the M in minor and the A in addition 406 Line 31 – Quotation marks (") following the word Addition 407 Line 54 – Delete the words "and placing" 408 Line 56 - Capitalize the letter l (L) following the word Letter 409 Line 73 – Change "h." to "i." following Under Section 3. 410 Line 86 – Change "eliminated" to "eliminate" Line 104 – Change "and bring to them" to and "bring to the Planning Board" 411 412 Line 109 – Insert time adjourned which was 9:00 p.m. 413

Planning Board November 28, 2012 Meeting Page Ten **Minutes Continued** Motion was made by Edvuard Viel to approve the November 14, 2012 Planning Board Minutes as amended. **Second:** John Morin **Vote:** 3-0-4 **Motion Passes** Arthur Stockus, John Morin, Eduard Viel voted yes Troy Osgood, Susan Mooney, Dirk Grotenhuis, Hal Rafter abstained **Motion** was made by John Morin to adjourn the meeting at 9:15 p.m. **Second:** Troy Osgood **Vote:** 7 - 0Respectfully Submitted Jo-Ann MacInnis Land Use Clerk